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WITNESSES

I NDEX

DIRECT CROSS REDIRECT RECROSS

(There were no witnesses.)
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EXHIBITS

DESCRIPTION

'(There were no exhibits.)
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(The following proceedings were held on

February 28, 2012)°

THE CLERK: 2010-GS-32-2979, State versus
Phillip Harold Jackson, indicted for murder. He is
pleading to voluntary manslaughter. Indictment
2011-GS-32-1269, State versus Phillip Harold
Jackson, indicted for armed robbery while armed with
a deadly weapon. He/is pleéding as charged. Both
indictments are true billed and he is represented by
Mr. Johnson. |

PHILLIP HAROLD JACKSON,
having been duly sworn, testified as follows:

PROBATION AGENT: Your Honor, Mr. Jackson is on
probation. We have issued two warrants and we've
just served a citation on him for today's plea. It
will be a violation. |

THE COURT: What's -he on probation for?

PROBATION AGENT: Grand larceny. '

THE COURT: Okay. Mr..Johnson, yéu represent
Mr. Jackson?

MR. JOHNSON: Yes, I do, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Have you explained the nature of
the charges againsf him, the possible punishment he
could receive, as well as his constitutional rights?

MR. JOHNSON: Yes, I have.
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THE COURT: Does he understand those?

MR. JOﬁNSON: He indicates that he has -- that
he dces. | |

THE COURT: Mr. Jackson, do you want to plead
guilty?

DEFENDANT: ‘Yes, sir.

THE COURT: Have you had enough time to talk to
ybur iawyer about this decision?

DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

THﬁ COURT: Are you satisfied with his
representation?

DEFENDANT : Yés, sir.

THE COURT: You got any complaints-against him?

DEFENDANT:A‘NO, sir.

THE COURT: You got any complaints against the
Solicitor's office?

DEFENDANT: No, sir.

THE COURT: Has anybody promised you anything
or threatened you -- this 1is a_negotiated sentence?

MS. DIXON: It is, Your Honor, negofiated 25.

THE COURT: Outside of the negotiations that
your lawyer and the State have entered into, has
anybody promised you anything or threatened you in
any way to get you to plead guilty?

DEFENDANT: No, sir.
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MR. JOHNSON: Your Honor, and just for
clarification, he's pleading guilty tc the armed
robbery. He's pleading under North Carclina versus
Alford to the murder charge.

THE COURT: Okay. He's pleading straight up to
the armed robbery and an Alford plea to the murder?
MR. JOHNSON: That's correct. ’

THE COURT: Okay. Mr. Jackson, as far as these
two charges are concerned, your lawyer tells me you
want to plead under North Carolina versus Alford on
the manslaughter. You understand that under an
Alfbrd plea, it is treated just like a guilty plea
as far as sentence is concerned and exposure and
everything else; you understand that?

DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: And the fact that this is a
negotiated plea between your lawyer énd the State,
if I feel that I cannot follow those negotiations
after I hear the facts, I will allow you to withdraw
your plea. You understand that?

DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: Do you have any complaints against
the Solicitor's office as far as discovery is
concerned? Do you feel like that you and your

lawyer have received whatever discovery is involved
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in this case, you got any discovery issues?

DEFENDANT: No, sir.

THE COURT: Okay. Are you under the influence
of alcochol or drugs today?

DEFENﬁANT: No, sir.

THE COURT: Do you have any mental diseases
that would keep you from understanding what you're
doing here today?

DEFENDANT: No, sir.

THE COURT: By pleading to these charges,
you're giving up your right to remain silent under
the Fifth Amendment of the Constitution bécause
you're'felling me you're guilty ds far as the armed
robbery.is concefned.

And as far as the-maﬁslaughter is concerned,
the State's going to give me a set of facts that
they intend to present at trial. And I assume that
you do not -- you want to take this deal that
they've offered you instead of going to trial for
murder; is that corréct?

DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: OQkay. And by pleading to these
charges, you're giving up your right to a jury
trial. And the fact that they occurred on different

dates, you would be entitled to two different
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trials. You understand that?

DEFENDANT: 'Yes, sir.

fHE COURT: And in those trials, you'll be able
to sit in the courtroom and confront the witnesses
that would testify against you. Your lawyer could
cross-examine the State's witnesses. He could
subpoena witnesses to testify in your behalf. He
could put up any defenses you may have to these
crimes. But when you plead guilty, you're giving
all that up. You understand?

DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: And you're giving up any appeals
that could come out of either one of those trials by
pleading guilty here today. Do you understand that?

DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: Do you have any questions_you want
to ask me concerning your rights?

DEFENDANT: No, sir.

THE COURT: If you want to appeal this guilty
plea today, you or your lawyer must file that appeal
with the Clerk of Court's office within ten days or
you give up that right. Do you understand?

DEFENDANT: VYes, sir. :

'THE COURT: All right. The Solicitor's going

to talk to me about the facts.
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MS. DIXON: Thank you, Your Honor.

Standing with me is Laura Malone. She is the
sister of Jimmy Lybrand, who's the victim in the
manslaughter case. We also have two officers here,
Your Honor, betective_Terry Govan, who was the case
officer on the murder case, as well as Sergeant |
Robby Lint from the major crimes at the sheriff's
department.

Your Honor, the manslaughter inﬁident occurred -
in the early morning hours of November lst of 2009

on ]I c:c in Lexington County. The

defendant along with three co-defendants were

traveling back from a club in Orangebﬁrg County

ariving down (NN

The State would show at trigl, Your Honor, that
the defeﬁdant was the passenger in the front seat of
that car, that there was some conversafion between
the defendant and the driver of that car regarding
getting a body. The defendant énd the
co-defendants, the State would show, Your Honor, are
self-proclaimed gang members, that there was some
discussion from the defendant that he wanted to get
a body.

They came upon Mr. Lybrand who was walking down

the road walking from his girlfriend's house back to
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his mother's house, pulled over, Your Honor, called
Mr. Lybrand over to the car. And when he leaned
down to talk to the deféndants, the State would
prove based on co-defendant testimony, that the
defendant shot Mr. Lybrand in the head killing him
instantly. His body was discovered a few hours
later, Your Honor. At first, they thought hé had

been hit by a car. After the crime scene got there

‘and the coroner got there, realized that he had, in

fact, been shot.

Detectives with the Lexington County Sheriff's
Department were working the case, following leads
when three days later on November 4th, 2009, this
defendant along with five co-defendants went into a
house on —, which is in the Pelion
area of Lexington County, planned this with five
co-defendants, Your Honor. They were all armed,
went to this house because the man who lived there
was a known drug dealer, went to that house with the
intention of robbing him of money and/of drugs that
he had in the home.

It's the State's position, Your Honor, that
this defendanf was one of the people who helped to
plan this armed robbery, waé one of the people who

helped to arm everyone else. He was not one of the

i
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two individuals that actually went inside the house.
Two individuals went iﬁside the house, the other
four stayed outside of the house ready to enter the
house when the robbery was about to take place.

The owner of fhe house or tﬁe person renting
the house there, Your Honor, Mr. Hendrix, is
currently in the department of corrections on some
unrelated charges. He actually was sHot in the
head, but survived.

The way tﬁat-this case was closed, Your Honor,
is because when the defendants fled from that armed

robbery, they were pursued by officers, ended up

getting into an accident. The defendant was

Captured there along with some conefendants,»othér
co-defendants were caught later, but the gun that
was used in the home invasion was found at the scene

of the accident and that gun was matched through

firearms and tool mark analysis as being the weapon

fhat had killed Mr. Lybrand on November 1lst of 20009.
THE COURT: Thank you. ‘
MS. DIXON: - Ms. Malone does wish to address the
Court at the appropriate time, Your Honor.
THE COURT: Okay. Mr. Jackson, you heard fhe
facts the Solicitor gave me on the armed robbery; is

that correct?

11
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ﬁEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: Are you pleading guilty because you
are guilty?

DEFENDANT: No, sir.

THE COURT: You're not guilty to armed robbery?

DEFENDANT: No, sir.

(Mr. Johnson confers with the defendant.)

MR. JOHNSON: Your Honor, please address that
again. -

THE COURT: Okay. Mr. Jacksén, I was asking
you about the armed robberyibecause your lawyer told
me and you told me earlier that you wanted to pleadl
guilty to this armed robbery. And the Solicitor
just gave me the facts of that armed robbery and
said that you were involved.in it, that you were out
ip the car. So»under the theory of the hand of one
is the hand of all, you want to plead guilty to
this.

DEFENDANT: Yes, sir. You're right, yes, sir.

THE COURT: And you understand if this case
went to trial, that the facts the Solicitor just
gave me concerning this manslaughter case, and you
may be going to trial on the murder case if you
decide to go to trial, that those would be the facts

that they intended to present against you in trial?
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DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: And db you want me to accept your
plea for the manslaughter under North Carolina
versus Alford?

DEFENDANT: Yes, éir.

THE COURT: Then I find there's a factual basis
for your pleas, that they're freely and voluntarily
entered into and that you've had advice of competent

counsel whom you tell me you're satisfied and I will

accept the pleas.

Yes, ma'am.-

MS. MALONE: Your Honor, my brother was 20
years old. He has-two kids. They're five'and
three.

I don't believe this young man has. any remorse
for anything thatAhe did. He comes in the courtroom
and hé laughs, he smiles. He doesn't regret
anything. He doesn't have a conscience I don't
believe.

The only way fhat my nephews will ever know
their father is through pictures and videos. I
don't believe that 25 years of this young man of
being able to walk out and still live the rest of
his life is enough. I don't think a hundred years

is enough. I just -- I want my brother to rest.

13
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THE COURT: Thank you, ma'am. I understand.
And I-wish I could give'you back what he's taken
from you, but I can't. But I appreciate you coming.
And I am sorry that you and your family have been
through this because it appeared from the facts, it
was a senseless killing and that your brother had
absolutely nothing to do with it. He was in the

wrong place at the wrong time and I'm really sorry.

i
t

Yes, sir -- anything else from the State?

MS. DIXON: Nothing from the State, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Yes, sir.

MR. JOHNSON: Thank you, Your Honor. Please
fhe Court.

Your Honor, first of all, my client -- on
behalf of my client, we wish to offer condolences to
the family. My client's contingency in the murder
has always been that he was not the shooter.

In this case, Your Honor, the armed robbery, -as
stated, there was two individuals that entered the
house in the armed robbery. My client Was not one
of them. There was a shooting that occurred inside
the house by some of the co-defendants. The gun
that was used in the armed robbery was also
connected to the murder. That gun, Your Honor, as

stated, "was the gun that was used in the murder.
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We ask the Court, because of North Carolina
versus Alford, it's our contention that while my
client was there, he was not actually the shooter,
Your Honor. He's always had that contingent. I
explained to him the théory of the hands of one is
the hand of all, as well as the possibility if‘he
went to trial, that a jury could preobably find him
guilty. Therefore, in taking all those things into
consideration, we thought that a negotiated plea was
a reasonable.solution to this -- to the whole case.

He understands, Your Honor, that he will be
given a 2S—year senfence if the Court decided to
accept his,neéotiatéd plea. He understands that'he
will spend roughly -- he's been in jéil, Your Honof,
since October the 4th of 2009. We ask tﬁat he be
given credit for thét. And we ask you to accept the
negotiated plea.

He's 24-years-old, Your Honor. He has -- his

mother is here today with some of his family

members, she's in the back. He was working at the

time. He has a GED. We ask you to accept the
negotiated plea, Your Honor.

Your Honor, my client would like to address the
Court as weil.

THE COURT: Yes, sir.

15
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DEFENDANT: I been in jail for two years. And
it was said that I didn't have any remorse for what
I was accused of deing. And, honestly, I didn't do
it. And to have remorse for something I didn't do,
I can't have, but I feel sorry for the situation
that  took place for her brother and I feel sorry
that I was ignorant enough to hang with these
individuals and get myself caught up in this
nonsense because that took time away from my family
as well as my life, you know what I'm saying.

I apologize that I'm sitting here having to
look like an énimal when I didn't do anything, but,
I mean, I just ask that you take this 25 plea for me
so I can get this all behind me, do my time and get
home with my family.

THE COURT: And you understand that on both .of
these charges, they are no parolable offenses. You
understand that?

DEFENDANT: Could you repeat that, please?

THE COURT: The armed robbery and the
manslaughter is a no parclable offense, so you have
to serve at least 85 percent of the 25 years. You
understand that?

DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: And I didn't talk to you -about that
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earlier, but I assumed your lawyer had.

Anything else from either side?

MS. DIXON: Nothing, Your Honor.

THE COURT: I'll follow the negotiations.

On indictment 2011-GS5$-32-1269 -- I'm sorry —--
2979 for voluntary manslaughter, the sentence of the
Court is you're committed to the State Department of
Corrections for a term of 25 years. I'm giving you
crédit for the time you served from October the 4th
of 2009.

On indictment 2011-GS-32-126% for armed
robbery, the sentence is 25 years'fo run concurrent
with the ﬁanslaﬁéhter indictment and credit from
October 4th of 2009.

MS. DIXON: Thank you, Your Honor.

PROBATIONAAGENT: -Judge, you want probation to
run concurrent? |

THE COURT: Revoke(the probation in full, yes.

PROBATION AGENT: And there was some
restitution to a civil judgment?

THE COURT: Yeah.

END OF PROCEEDINGS

17
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CERTIFICATE

STATE, OF SOUTH CAROLINA

COUNTY OF LEXINGTON

I, the undersigned, Stacy L. Sheppard, Ciréuit
Court Reporter for the Eieventh Judicial Circuit of
the State of Soutﬂ Carolina, do hereby certify that
the foregoing is a true, accurate and complete
transcript of record of all the procéedings had and
the evidence introduced in the guilty plea of the
captioned cause, relative to appeal in the Criminal
Court for Lexington County, South Carolina, on the
28th of February, 2012.

I do further certify that I am neither of kin,

counsel, nor interest to any party hereto.
March 3, 2012

21T A A

Stacy L. Sheppard, RPR
Circuit Court Reporter
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APPLICATION TO PROCEED WITHOUT PAYMENT
OF COSTS AND AFFIDAVIT

IN SUPPORT THEREOF
L Onlie +F rckeen

, hereby apply for leave to
proceed in this action without prepayment of fees or costs or security therefor. In support of my
application I declare under penalty of pegury that the following facts are true:

(Y)/ [ am the applicant in this action and I believe | am entitled to redress

(\2/ Because of my poverty I am unable to pay the
security thereof.

of said proceeding or give

/ V Applicant
SWORN or affirmed to and subscribed before e this
19 dayof _&{;ﬁ . L. B
g =
W a,wuu(/ WW 24 g A
iy r"\ j‘ —t ——
Notary Public Ry W r‘
Zoa @ m
My Commission Expires: 8 / J /5) 3¢ :;é% w9
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. ’ —4% o

2012CP3204378

Revised 3/2003
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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) INTHE COURT OF COMMON PLEAS
’ ) ELEVENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
COUNTY OF LEXINGTON ) Case No. 2012-CP-32-4378
)
Phillip H. Jackson, )
S.C.D.C.No. 317505 )
- )
Applicant, )
) .
\2 ) RETURN
)
State of South Carolina, )
o )
Respondent. )

The Respondent, making its Return to the Application for Post-Conviction Relief

(PCR) filed October 30, 2012, would respectfully show this Court:
L

The Applicant is presently confined in the South Carolina Department of
Corrections pursuant to orders of commitment of the Clerk of Court for Lexington
County. The Applicant was indicted at the October 2010 term of the General Sessions
for Lexington County for murder (2010—GS—32;O2979) and was incited May 2011 term of
the Court of General Sessions for Lexington County for armed robbery while armed or
allegedly armed with a deadly weapon (2011-GS-32-01269). Charles E. Johnson,
Esquire, represented Applicant. On February 28, 2012, the Applicant ple& guilty to armed
robbery while armed or allegedly armed with a deadly weapon and to voluntary
manslaughter. The Honorable R. Ferrell Cothran, Jr. sentenced Applicant to twenty-five
years on each charge. The sentences to be served concurrently. The Applicant did not

appeal.

[rgasanmaiaes



Attached herewith and incorporated herein by reference are the records of the
Lexington County Clerk of Court regarding the subject conviction(s), the Applicant’s
records from the Department of Corrections, and the transcript of the proceeding against
the Applicant. Respondent reserves the right to amend its return upon the receipt of other
relevant records.

II.
Iﬂ his Application, the Applicant alleges that he is being held in custody

unlawfully for the following reasons:

l. “Ineffective Assistance of Counsel”
“Violation of ‘Hand of one Hand of all’
law”

3. “Denial of Due Process & Denial of equal
protection of the law”

IIL

The Applicant alleges ineffective assistance of counsel. The Respondent

contends that theA Applicant's counsel rendered adequate assistance and provided
representation within the ﬁnge of competence required by attomeys in criminal cases.
See Butler v. State, 286 S.C. 441, 334 S.E.2d 813 (1985).

In a post-conviction relief proceeding, the Applicant bears the burden of proving
the allegations in their application. Id. Where ineffective assistance of counsel is alleged
as a ground for relief, the Applicant must prove that "counsel's conduct so undermined
the proper functioning of the adversarial process that the trial cannot be relied upon as
having produced a just result.” Strickland v. Washington, 466 U.S. 668, 104 S.Ct. 2052,

2064, 80 L.Ed.2d 674, 692 (1984); Butler, 334 SE.2d 813.

27
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The proper measure of performance is whether the attomey provided representa-
tion within the rangc;, of competence required in criminal cases. The courts presume that
couns\el rendered adequate assistance and made all significant decisions in the exercise of
reasonable professional judgment. Strickland, 80 L.Ed.2d 674. The Applicant must
overcome this presumption in order to receive relief. Cherry v. State, 300 S.C. 115, 386
S.E.2d 624 (1989).

A two-pronged test is used in evaluating éllegations of ineffective assistance of
counsel. First, the Applicant must prove that counsel's performance was deﬁcient.
Under this prong, attorney performance is measured by its "reasonableness under
professional norms." Cherry, 300 S.C. at 117, 386 S.E.2d at 625, citing Stn'cklar;d.
Second, counsel's deficient performance must have préjudiced the Applicant such that
"there is a reasonable pmbabiliﬁ tBaI, but for counsel's unprofessional errors, the result of
the proceeding would have been different." Cherry, 300 S.C. at 117-18, 386 S.E.2d at
625. .

With respect to a guilty plea, the Applicant must show that there is a reasonable
probability that, but for counsel’; alleged errors, he would not have pled guilty and would
have insisted on going to trial. Hill v. Lockhart, 474 U.S. 52, 106 S.Ct. 366, 88 L.Ed.2d |
203 (1985).

The Respondent submits that ;che Api)ﬁcanf cannot satisfy either requirement of
the Strickland test. However, the allegation of ineffective assistance of counsel probably
raises questions of fact that cannot be conclusively refuted by the record. The
Respondent requests an evidentiary hearing to fully resolve this issue}. See Sharper v.

State, 279 S.C. 264, 305 S.E.2d 247 (1983).




Iv.

Applicant raises additional direct appeal allegations. These allegations are not

proper matters for PCR. Simmons v. State, 264 S.C. 417, 215 S.E.2d 833 (1975).
Therefore Applicant’s direct appeal allegations must be summarily dismissed.
VI

The Respondent therefore requests that this Court convene an evidentiary hearing
solely on the issue of ineffective assistance of counsel. As to all other allegations, the
Respondent moves for summary dismissal pursuant to S.C. Code Ann. § 17-27-70 on the
basis that there is no genuine issue of material fact which would necessitate an eviden-
tiary hearing and that those allegations should be dismissed as a matter of law.

VIL.

Applicant must specify any claims he intends to raise at the PCR trial. Any claims
not specifically laid out in this PCR application or in amendments will be opposed by the
State at an evidentiary hearing. S‘Cf Code § 17-27-10 et seq; SCRCP 71.1. All claims
should be made well in advance of the PCR hearing. If Applicant has an attorney
appointed, the attorney, and not the inmate, is the only one authorized to file
amendments. SCRCP Rule 11. Filings by inmates will not be considgred at the PCR
hearing.

VIIL

Each and every allegation contained within the application not hereinbefore either

expressly admitted, qualified or explained is hereby denied.

IX.

29
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WHEREFORE, having made its Return, the Respondent requests that a hearing -

be held.

nd
Soedis 77" 2013

ALAN WILSON
Attorney General

JOHN W. McINTOSH
Chief Deputy Attorney General

SALLEY W. ELLIOTT

Assistant Deputy Attorney General

WALT WHITMIRE

Assistant Attorney General
By: /M/ﬁ/ﬁ

ATTORNEYS FOR RESPONDENT

Office of the Attorney General

- P.O. Box 11549

Columbia, SC 29211
Telephone: (803) 734-3737
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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) IN THE COURT OF COMMON PLEAS
_ ) IN THE ELEVENTH CIRCUIT
COUNTY OF LEXINGTON )
)
) 2012-CP-32-4378
)
Phillip A. Jackson, # 317505 )
)
Applicant, )
)
Vs ) AFFIDAVIT OF SERVICE BY MAIL
)
STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA, )
)
Respondent )
)
1. [ am an employee of the Respondent in the above-captioned action.
2. Regular communication by mail exists throughout the State of South Carolina and that

this is'a proper circumstance of service by mail.

3. [ have this day served a copy of the Return in the above-captioned matter on the
following person by depositing same in the United States mail, postage prepaid:

Ryan M. Wingard, Esquire
Post Office Box 489
Lexington, SC 29071

DATED this 22" day of March, 2013

AN

A i 7 /’7:"!
: /{q/’ L

A P Al

\Troyééhi/B'railey, Légal Assistarit
For Respondent

10

Ltk s om0
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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) : :
) COURT OF COMMON PLEAS
COUNTY OF LEXINGTON ) 2012-CP-32-04378

PHILLIP JACKSON )
APPLICANT )

VS. ) TRANSCRIPT OF RECORD
)
)
)

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA
RESPONDENT

November 14, 2013 _
Lexington, South Carolina

BEFORE:

THE HONORABLE R. LAWTON MCINTOSH, JUDGE.

APPEARANCE S:

CHARLES BROOKS, ESQ.
Attorney for the Applicant

WALTER WHITMIRE, ASSISTANT ATTORNEY GENERAL
Attorney for the Respondent

o

CAROL M. THUEME, RPR
Official Court Reporter
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MR. WHITMIRE:A May it please the Court.
THE COURT: Yes, sir. ‘

MR. WHITMIRE: The last matter before the Court
for this morning's roster is Phil Jackson v State of South
Carolina.

Beg the Court's indulgence just one moment .

(Pause.)

THE COURT: Is that Phillip Jackson?

MR. WHITMIRE: Yes, Your!Honor, 2012-Cp-32-4378.
Mr. Jackson filed his application for post-conviction
relief October 30th, 2012. "Mr. Jackson was indicted for
murder and armed robbery. He entered a guilty plea as
indicted for the armed robbery. He entered an Alford plea
to voluntary manslaughter, the lesser included of murder.
Mr. Jackson was sentenced to two 25-year terms of
imprisonment to be served concurrently by the. Honorable
Judge Cothran. Mr. Jackson did not appeal his sentence or
conviction.

Mr.. Jackson is present and represented by
Mr. Brooks. Mr. Jackson 1is proceeding today on an
allegation of failure to advise on the
hand-of-one-hand-of-all accomplice liability theory. He
wae represented at his plea duriﬁg'the course of this case
by Mr. Charlie Johnson.

THE COURT: Mr. Brooks.
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MR. BROOKS: Ready to proceed, Judge.

THE COURT: Any other grounds other than the
failure to advise of hand of one hand of all?

MR. BROOKS: That's it, Judge.

THE COURT: All right. Call your first witness,
please.

MR. WHITMIRE: Your Honor, I hate to interrupt.

We do have victims present. Ms. Harris, the victim's

“mother, along with family are present to observe this

hearing.

THE COURT: Very good.

MR. BROOKS: Beg the Court's indulgence.

THE COURT: Yes, sir.

(Pause.)

MR. BROOKS: We'll go ahead and call Mr. Jackson
to the stand, Judge.

THE COURT: Come around, please, sir.

PHILLIP JACKSON, after being duly sworn,
testified as follows:

THE CLERK: Have a seat, please.

MR. BROOKS: Ready, Judge?

THE COURT: Yes, sir.

DIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MR. BROOKS:

Q Mr. Jackson, how are you today?
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PHILLIP JACKSON - Direct Exam by Mr._Brooks

5
A Fine. And yourself?
, \
Q All right. Now, you are serving basically a 25-year
sentence?
A Right.

0 Okay. And you have filed this post-conviction relief

application. And you understand that the only power the
Court has if everything lines up for you and the Judge

agrees with you and overturns your guilty plea is to give

. you a new trial?

A Right.

Q Okay. And you understand the risk that you run in
getting that?

A I do.

Q We talked about that. And just for the record,'you
can go back and face a life sentence?

A Right.

Q You understand that?

A Right..

Q And you also understand that over here in Lexington
County they tend to hand out déath penalties like people

hand out candy?

A Right.

Q You understénd that?
A Right.

Q

You understand that that could be a potential risk?
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PHILLIP JACKSON - Direct Exam by Mr. Brooks

A Right.

Q Knowing all that, it is still your desire to go
forward; is that correct?

A Correct.

Q Okay. ©Now, you had Mr. Johnson represent you; is
that correct?

A That's right.

Q And he was appointed to you; is that right?

A Yes, sir.

Q Okay. And you ended up pleading guilty. And you're
saying now that this guilty plea should be overturﬁed

because Mr. Johnson didn't properly advise you; is that

correct?
A Yes, sir.
Q Now, tell the Court what you mean and explain what

you mean how he didn't properly advise you.

A Well, initially I started off saying that I wanted to
go straight to trial because I told him several times I
was innocent, you know what I'm saying? But -- and
throughout the course of me being incarcerated he was
letting me know, okay, yeah, that's what's up, we going to
go through a trial. But then I got my motion and he
started seeing other things that I didn't see and he's
telling me some days it's godd, some days it's bad. So I

got my motion from him. Out of the motion, it's
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PHILLIP JACKSON - Direct Exam by Mr. Brooks

7
740-something-odd pages on the motion, but I only have --
only received 35 pages of that motion without the
ballistics or the autopsy report, and those things are
critical when I'm trying to go to trial or even if I
wanted to try to go to trial.

Q Well, let me ask you this now. In your transcript —-
A Right.

Q —— that is about 20-some pages, I can't remember the
exact count, there is a lot of talk about hand of one is
the hand of all.

A Right. |

Q Mr. Johnson and you in the transcript talk about you
not getting being the shooter.

A Right.

Q Obviously you were in the éar and the hand of one is

the hand of all. What do yod know now that had you known
last year whéen you did this plea deal that would have
caused to you turn down this plea, to not take this plea
in front of Judge Cothran?

A That if I would have been able to look at the
ballistic report and see that I didn't have no
fingerprints on the weapon.

Q Hold on a second. Listen to me carefully.

A Okay.

Q Listen to me carefully.
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PHILLIP JACKSON - Direct Exam by Mr. Brooks

In the transcript it talks about -- at least
Mr. Johnson mentions and you talk about not being the
shooter?
A Right.
Q That's all over the transcript.
A Right.
Q How would the ballistics report and fingerprints on
the gun, how would having that have helped you?
A Because it wbuld have showed I wasn't the shooter.
How can I be the shooter with no fingerprints on the gun?
Q Listen to me carefully again now. Listen to me
carefully.

In the transcript Mr. Johnson talks about you

" not being the shooter?

A -Right.
Q And you were basically pleading guilty under the

theory of the hand of one is the hand of all?

A Right.

Q Which means that you weren't the one that_picked up
the gun to shoot, and that's how the plea was developed?
A Right.

Q Murder dropped down to manslaughter, negotiated plea
of 25 based on that whole idea that you were not the
shooter?

A Right.
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PHILLIP JACKSON - Direct Exam by Mr. Brooks

Q So how would getting evidence such as a ballistiCS

report that would say you weren't the shooter, how would
that help you in a plea that's already been done where it
was talked about you not being the shooter? You follow me
now? |
A Yeah, I got you.

Well, I had -- I didn't -- I didn't really
understand the law or really check my motion out enough to.
really feel like I was -—- I can't quite answer your
question the way T have it in my mind, right, but --

Q I understand. Have you/learned anything about the
hand of one hand of all, havé you learned anything?

A It's just a theory.

0 Have you learned -- what do you know now about that?

A About the hand of one hand of all?

Q You're asking this judge to overturn your guilty
plea?
A Right.

Q You pled guilty under that whole premise?

A Right. |

Q Okay. Because in the transcript it talks about you
not being the shooter? o |
A Right.

Q You pled guilty about being in&olved -

A Right.
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PHILLIP JACKSON - Direct Exam by Mr. Brooks

10
Q -- in the whole incident?
A Right. )
0 Okay. What have you learned that would exonerate
you, exonerate, that would acquit you -- that means that
you wasn't involved -- that would make you innocent under

hand of one hand of all?

A Well, if we looking at the hand of one hand of all
and from my point of view if -- if that was what I was
going under and that's why I pled, then.why not -- didn't
my codefendants receive the same exact amount of time as
me? Why did they receive seven years and 12 years and I
received 25 years if it's the hand-of one hand of all?

Q Well, that's a very good point. But now you
understand that if you do win this PCR, and this kind of -
brings it back to the first question --

A Right.

0 ~- that those same codefendants, they could come back
and you would be on trial not for manslaughter but for
murder?

A Right.

Q And I'm going out on a limb, but I bet you those same
guys will be coming into this courtroom and they're going
to say Phillip is the shooter?

A More than likely.

Q Okay? You understand that danger?
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PHILLIP JACKSON - Direct Exam by Mr. Brooks
11

o oo >

Yes.

That's danger?

Right.

Okay. I don't -- I mean, what they got sentenced to,

we're just talking about your plea now?

A Right.
Q You understand that the Judge can't cut your time?
A Right.

o) He can't change 25 to 20 to 15. Do you understand
that?

A I understand.

Q I want to make sure you understand. It's like
pressing that reset button on the video game, same game.

Do YOu'understand?

A I understand.
0 You still want this new trial?
A Yes.

0 Okay. Now, basically are you saying that Mr. Johnson
basically said that, hey, man, you need to just go on here
and take this deal?

A Yeah. In a nutshell, yeah.

Q Okay. And are you saying that under the hand of one
is the hand of all that you're not guilty of any of this?:
A I mean, as far as the armed robbery I would be guilty

because I was there, guilty by association because of me
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PHILLIP JACKSON - Direct Exam by Mr. Brooks

12
being there, but as far as the murder, no, period.
Q Do you understand if you're saying you did the armed
robbery you can get 307
A Right.
Q That's five more than what you got?
A Right.
Q You understand that even on that admission, you could
still get five more years than what you got?
)\ Right.
Q Okay. What else about Mr. Johnson's representation

do you want to tell Judge McIntosh here today that would
lead us to get you this new trial?

A Well, other than the fact that I didn't receive a
full and correct motion, which I felt like would have
helped me proceed in a better light than what I was when I
first started. I mean, he --

Q Let me ask you, do you think if you'd had all this
motion for discovery, all this information, that you could
turn back the hands of time and stand trial you would be
successful from what you know now?

A It's a possibility. I mean, it's -- we —— if you
want to be honest --

Q Do you think you would be successful if you could

turn back the hands of time, because that's what we're

' asking Judge McIntosh to do?
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PHILLIP JACKSON - Direct Exam by Mr. Brooks
13

A Right.

Q We're asking him to turn back the hands of time and
put you back at square zero? |

A Right.

Q And you got all the stuff you want?

A Right.

Q  The ballistics report, the discovery. Forget about
Mr. Johnson. You got the best lawyer in South Carolina,
whoever your haﬁd—picked lawyer you want sitting at the
table hereAin Lexington County knowing your case, because
nobody knows ybur case better than you? |

A Right.

'QV Are you saYing -- do you feel that you would be

successful?

A I mean, we —-- as far as the law, nobody's going to be

- a hundred percent. It's based-on the jury. I can give

great evidence saying that I was not there and in the end,
if the jury's saying I'm guilty regardless of the fact,
it's a 50/50 chance, so I mean... f

Q And vyou understand -— again, I hate to belabor the
point -- you do understand what happens if that 50 percent
come back?

A Right.

Q Okay. All right. Anything else you want to tell the

Court,abQut Mr. Johnson's representation? This is' the
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PHILLIP JACKSON - Direct Exam by Mr. Brooks
14

day. Tell Judge McIntosh why Mr. Johnson was ineffective
and inefficient in representing you.

A No, that's -- that's -—‘basically he wasn't informing
me of the things I needed to know. And I was saying that
I wanted to go to trial, but we never really sat down and
came up with a trial concept on how we going to even
proceed in trial.

Q Okay. . And you if knew what you knew now back then
you would have turned down the deal and proceeded to
trial, right?

A Right. If I had the knowledge that I have now, yes.

Q Okay. Is there anything else that we want to tell

. the Judge that we haven't covered?

A ‘No, sir.

MR. BROOKS: All right. Answer any questions
from the Attorney General.

MR. WHITMIRE: May it please the Court.

THE COURT: Mr. Whitmire.

CROSS-EXAMINATION

BY MR. WHITMIRE:
Q Mr. Jackson, five days separated two offenses that
you pleaded guilty for; is that correct?
A Yes, sir.
Q The second event you're saying clear-cut you did it;

is that correct?
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PHILLIP JACKSON - Cross-Exam by Mr. Whitmire
15

A Say that again. _

Q The armed robbery; youfre saying that you .absolutely
did it? |
A No, I didn't. I said I was there, but I didn't do
it.

Q‘ By being there, you and a codefendant went in the
house while several lookouts remained outside; is that
correct? \ |

A No, sir. It has in my motion that I never even

" entered into the house.

Q Didn't they catch you fleeing from the crime scene
red handed?

A They caught me fleeing from the crime scene, not the
house, sir.

Q Now, Mr. Jackson, thé gun that was used to shoot the
second victim.df the armed robbery, didn't it connect back
to the murder that occurred fiveldays prior?

A Yes, sir.

Q And these are the same group of people that you were
hanging out with when these two events occurred?

A . It was alleged that I hung out with them during the
murder, but dﬁring the armed‘robbery, yes, sir, those are
the same people.

Q Did Mr. Johnson review all of their statements and

stories with you during the course of representation?
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PHILLIP JACKSON - Cross-Exam by Mr. Whitmire
16

A To my -— I can't remember quite if we went over -- I
remember we spoke on several things, but I can't -- not to
my recollection, I can't remember, sir.

Q You don't remember Mr. Johnson telling you that every

single one of those codefendants put you as the shooter in

~the murder?

A I mean, he didn't have to tell me that. My motion
said that, sir.

Q So you knew this?

A Yes, sir.

o} And you and the codefendants, you're all in a gang,

right?
A Yes, sir.
Q Didn't one of your codefendants give a statement that

right before you executed the first victim, or someone in
your car, that you had said I want to get me a body?
That's what he said.

So you're aware of that?

Yes, Sir.

And you're the leader of this gang; is that correct?

b G O

I mean, that's what the evidence shows that I'm the
leader, but...

Q You're just trying tobimpress new recruits?

THE COURT: Answer the question.

THE APPLICANT: That's a rhetorical questions?
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PHILLIP JACKSON - Cross-Exam by Mr. Whitmire
17

Was I trying to impress —— no..
BY MR. WHITMIRE:

Q When you said that statement, I want get me a body?

A No, I mean, I never made that statement because I

never was there.

Q If I'recail correctly you said you were in the car
five days prior to the armed robbery when the first victim
was gunned down?

A No, I wes in the car for the armedlrobbery. I

wasn't —— if you look in the motion it says that I was

never there. If you look in the article that when I was

in court, it shows that when I was in court it shows.that
I'm saying I wasn't there, so...

Q So wait a second. So you're saying none of your
codefendants even put you there during the murder now?

A They did, but you asked me do I -- do I feel like I
was there. You was asking me was I there. You didn't ask
me what my codefendants $aid. You was asking me was I
there, and I'm telling you I wasn't there. What my
codefendants said, yes, they said that.

Q And you told Judge Cothran that you were pleading
guilty because yoﬁ believe a jury would convict you?

A I mean, under the pretense of what my lawyer told me,
he said that would be the best plea to do. But as far as

me knowing the exact plea, I took it upon myself to follow
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PHILLIP JACKSON - Cross-Exam by Mr. Whitmire
' 18

what my lawyer say because he is my lawyer and he's to
help me, so yes, that's what I did, not fully
understanding about that would hurt me if I was to come

back on PCR.

0 - Now, Mr. Jackson --
A Yes, sir.
Q -- 1if you're the leader of this gang and the

codefendants put you in the car, did Mr. Johnson explain
to you that the jury could get you on the hand of cne?

A Yes, sir.

Q Taking the facts as you present them today?

A I mean, I -- that I understand and that's why I'm
fighting this, the hands of one. How did I -- how did I

get 25, they got seven and 12 if it's the hands of one?

iDoes it only fit for those who tell on individuals, that

it's thrown out, and the ones who don't say anything gets
the hand of one hand of all fheory?
Q Did your attorney explain to you that what a
codefendant gets in sentencing doesn't secure --

THE COURT: Move on. That is totally
irrelevant.

MR. WHITMIRE: Thank you,»Your Honor.
BY MR. WHITMIRE:
Q How many times did you meet with your attorney?

A I don't quite know the number, but it was a few
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times, more than two.
MR. WHITMIRE: No further questions, Your Honor.
THE COURT: Thank you.
Redirect? '
MR. BROOKS: No, sir.
THE COURT: Step down, please, sir.
MR. BROOKS: We would.call Mr. Charlie Johnson
to the stand. |
THE COURT: Come around, Mr. Johnson, please.
Would you be sworn in, please, sir.
CHARLIE JOHNSON, JR., after being duly sworn,
testified as follows:
THE CLERK: Have a seat, sir.
MR. BROOKS: May it please, Judge.
THE COURT: Yes,,sir.
) DIRECT‘EXAMINATION
BY MR. BROOKS:
How are you doing today, Mr. Johnson?
I'm doing pretty good.
You were appointed to represent Mr. Jackson?

Yes, I was.

(O ORI I @)

Could you give a brief summary of what the State's
evidence was against him?
A Okay. I was initially appointed to represent him. I

went to see Mr. Jackson numerous times and we talked about
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the evidence. He had two separate charges. One was an
armed robbery charge; the other was an incident where
there was a murder. I actually got a PI, a private
investigator to assist me, Amos Jones. He went with me a
numper of times to assist me as well.

On the armed robbery charge what happened was
there was some individuals that went into a house, I guess
to rob some drug dealers or some other people. 1In that
case an individual went into the house, there was some
lookouts, and Mr. Jackson was in the car that took the
people there or was in the car that was leaving the scene.
I think the car wrecked or pulled to the side and

Mr. Jackson was arrested at that time along with the other

individuals. He never went inside the house, but he was

there. And the individuals say that Mr. Jackson was the
one that was directing them to go inside the house, okay?
Q Okay.

A That was the armed robbery charge.

Q Okay.

A They recovered a gun at the scene from -- that was
not on Mr. Jackson, but the gun was then related back to
the murder that happened days before. With that they went
to some of the people that was arrested at the armed
robbery. Those individuals gave statements saying

basically that we went to Orangeburg, we was On our way
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back from Orangéburg, and the statements were thatv

Mr. Jackson said, I have to have a body, and he pulled
beside an individual thét was walking home and just called
him to the car and shot him.

Q Okay.

A - And he pulled away. And that's how Mr. Jackson then
was charged with the murder. The other individuals admit
to being there and being in the car énd witnessing that.

Q ' All right.

A So when I got discovery I talked to Mr. Jackson about
the armed robbery and we looked at that. And basically as
he stated today, he's always been conerative, he's always
listened to me, and I told him that under the armed
robbery with the evidence that was there, there was a very
iikely chance that he would be convicted of it. And he
understood that. .And I told him that he was looking at(a
possible 30 years for that, just that alone. But I told

him my main worry was. that if he got convicted for the

armed robbery, what the State would do would then be to

try him for the armed robbery, come back later and fry'him
for the murder, and if found guilty for the murder, it
would be a mandatory life senﬁence under the two-strike
laws. And I told him that my main concern‘was trying to

reduce his exposure to how much time he was exposed to.

Q Did you feel that you represented him to the best of
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youf ability according to the law?

A Yeah. I mean‘25 years is a long time for anybody to
go to jail. I understand that. But under the
circumstances and the evidence that was there, I felt that
I did a real good job getting the 25 years and getting the
Solicitor's office to agree to that here in Lexington
County. And I explained to Mr. Jackson the reason.
Because as I stated, he never told me that he committed
the murder. He's always stated that he did not commit the
murder. And I told him that under the circumstances of
him being there in the car or allegedly being in the car I
didn't have any alibi witnesses that I could put up to say
he was somewhere else. We didn't have that. That under
those circumstances, an Alford plea would be the best plea
that I could come up with because I felt if we went to
trial he would have been convicted. And under that
scenario he could possibly be looking at a life sentence

or just for murder alone, it's a mandatory 30 years day

for day. Under voluntary at least he would be looking at

an 85 percent sentence. He got a 25-year sentence, but
realistically he would have to do about 22 -- I told him
21, 22 and a half years. So even at that it wouldn't

be -- ‘

Q That's before credit?

A Right.
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Q Before the time credit?

A Well, after the time éredit, it would be about 21
years on a 25-year sentence. So under that scenario I
felt that that was my advice to him. And I told him it
would be his call, but my advice to him would be to take
the plea.

Q Did you go through all the Rule 5 discovery?

A What I did was, the reason that I only give -- I went
through all the Rﬁle 5s, but the reason I only give him 35
pages is because that was the only pages that referenced
him. There was nothing else in the discovery that
connected him to any of the crime. He was correct, there
was no fingerprints on the gun, no —- none'Qf the other
evidence had connect to him at all, so there was no need
for him to even see that. I gave him all the information
fhat placed him at the scene, with all the statements of
what all the other codefendants made. Anything that was
connected to him he had and anything helwanted to see he
could see. I had my investigator come along with me and
talk about his investigation of the case and what he felt.
Q Did you -- now, I noticed Mr. Jackson talked about
disparity of sentences With his codefendants?

A Right. |

Q ‘Do you recall --

A I don't think =-- I think the codefendants were
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sentenced actually after Mr. Jackson pled guilty. So at
that time that wasn't a discussion to be had because no
one else had pled gquilty that I was aware of.

Q All right. So basically the evidence against him
consisted of potential codefendant testimony?

A Potential codefendant testimony, his actual presence

at the scene of the armed robbery with those same

codefendants.
Q Where ‘the gun was found?
A Where the gun was found as well as codefendants

stating that he was with them the night before because
there Was -- I think one or two was saying they was being
initiated or they were with him or new members to a gang
which he was alleged to be the head of.

0 Did you tell him there was an uphill battle to win
this trial?

A Yes. I mean, I give him my fair opinion. But I also
told him that it was his call because at the end of the

day he was the one that would have to do the time and not

me.

- Q Did you tell him about his right to appeal after the

plea?
A Yes, I did.
Q. And you had Mr. Amos Jones as an investigator. Are

you saying that he investigated all the leads that
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Mr. Jackson gave you, potential witnesses and-things of
that sort?
A Yes, I had Mr. Amos Jones. I've always used Mr.
Jones. Mr. Jones has been like an investigator here in
this area for like 30, 40 years. I'm death penalty
qualified,. Mr. Jones has always been my investigator for
death penalty, and we put a lot of tiﬁe and effort into
this because as I said, as I told Mr; Jackson, I could not
tell him the outcome of this case or guarantee.that he |
will walk, but I wanted him to know that I was doing
everything I could to be his attorney, so at the end of
the day whatever time he got, if he got time, that he
would know I did everything I could.

MR. BROOKS: Beg the Court's indulgence, Your
Honor. -

THE COURT: Yes, sir.

(Pause.)

MR. BROOKS: No further questions.

THE COURT: Thank you, sir.

MR. WHITMIRE: One question, Your Honor.

CROSS—EXAMINATION

BY MR. WHITMIRE: |
Q Good morning, Mr. Johnson.
A Good morning.

Q All the codefendants, were their statements
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consistent regarding Mr. Jackson's guilt?
A They were consistent in saying that Mr. Jackson was
the one that ultimately pulled the trigger in the murder.
In the armed robbery, they were consistent that he was
there with them at the armed robbery.

MR. WHITMIRE: ©No further questions, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Thank you. May Mr. Johnson be

excused?

MR. BROOKS: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: Thank you, sir.

MR. BROOKS: Judge, that is the applicant's
case.

THE COURT: Thank you very much.

I've listened to the testimony. The only ground
I have is failure to advise hand of one hand of all as
related on the record.

Number one, I find that that argument is without
merit, but Mr. Johnson's testimony that I just heard shows
me that he had a valid trial strategy in this case to try
to 'avoid the defendant getting life in prison. The
defendant made a valid choice of going to a plea as
opposed to trial to avoid the possible life in prison.
Even though 25 years is a long time and everybody
understands that, it's not as long as life and dying in

prison. With that being said, Mr. Johnson's testimony 1is
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very credible. There's been no showing of deficiency in
performance. In fact, if you look through the trénscript
of record, Judge Keesley goes throﬁgh a full and proper
colloquy or question and answer, Mr. Jackson, between you
and Mr. Johnson in court whereby you waived your
constitutional rights on page eight of the transcript. He
advises that you‘ve given up any defenses you may have.
So regardless of what you testified here in court today,
you freely, knowingly, intelligently waived your
constitutional rights including the right to assert any
defenses. Therefore, I'm dehying your petition.

Good luck to you.

(The proceedings were concluded.)

*** END OF REQUESTED TRANSCRIPT OF RECORD ok
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Applicant, ORDER OF DISMISSAL
) R
\Z )
)
State of South Carolina, )
)
Respondent. )
: D)

This matter reaches the Court by way of an Application for‘Post-Conviction Relief (PCR)
filed October 30, 2012. Respondent made its Return on March 22, 2013. An evidentiary hearing
was convened on November 14, 2013 at the Lexington County Courthouse. Applicant was
present and was represented by Charles T. Brooks, HI. Esq. Respondent was present and was
represented by Walt Whitmire, Esq., of the Office of the Attorney General.

PROCEDURAL HISTORY

The Applicant is presently confined in thé South Carolina Department of Corrections
pursuant to orders of commitment of the Clerk of Court for Lexingtoﬁ County. The Applicant
was indicted at the May 2011 term of the Court of Geheral Sessions for Lexington County for
armed robbery 2011-GS-32-01269) and murder (2010-GS-32-02979). Charles E. Johnson, Esq.,
represented Applicant. On February 28, 2012, Applicant pled guilty to armed robbery and he
pled guilty pursuant to North Carolina v. Alford' to the lesser included offense of voluntary
manslaughter. The Honorable R. Ferrell Cothran, Jr. sentenced Applicant to a twenty-five (25)

year term of imprisonment on each offense. The offenses were to be served concurrently.

! North Carolina v. Alford, 400 U.S. 25, 91 S.Ct. 160 (1970)
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Applicant did not appeal his sentence or conviction. At the PCR hearing, Appllcant alleged that
~ he was bemg held in custody unlawfully for the following reasons:

1. Ineffective Assistance of Counsel
a._failure to adequately advise Applicant on the

“hand of one” accomplice liability theory of
guilt;
b. failure to review the State’s discovery disclosure
in its entirety;
c. failure to object to Applicant receiving a
disproportionate sentence to his co-defendants.
SUMMARY OF TESTIMONY
Applicant alleged counsel was ineffective for failing to review all of State’s discovery
disclosures with him. Appllcant testified that he initially wanted to proceed directly to trial. He
stated that he only had the opportunity to review thirty-five of the nearly seven hundred pages of |
discovery provided to counsel. He testified that he was not able to look at the State’s ballistics
arld trace evidence that he asserted constituted exculpatory evidence on the murder charge.
Applicant claimed that he would have proceeded to trial based on this information. He testified
he met with counsel more than twice but was not certain the actual number. He testified that he
believed he would have had a ﬁfty-ﬁfty shot at being acquitted of the murder charge had counsel
taken the case to trial. Applicant’s assertion was based upon information he has recently learned.
Applicant alleged counsel was ineffective for failing to adequately advise him on the

“hand of one” accomplice theory of guilt. He testified he told counsel that he was not present in
the vehicle during the murder. He testified that he did not “understand the law” prior to entering
the plea and now believes that the State could not prove “hand of one” based on the evidence. He
did testify that counsel discussed the statements of all his co-defendants that blaced him in the

vehicle and at the crime scene at the time of the murder. He opined that his co-defendants made

false statements against him in order to further their plea negotiations. He testified that his guilt
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for armed robbery was not in question. Applicant claimed his attorney wanted him to the take the
negotiated plea offer because he was already looking at prison for the armed robbery. Last,

Applicant alleged counsel was ineffective for failing to ensure he received a prison sentence

proportional to the sentences that his co-defendant’s received.

Counsel testified to the manner in which he handled Applicant’s case. He employed an
investigator and noted that the defense team expended a substantial amount of time and effort
into Applicant’s case. Counsel filed for discovery, reviewed the State’s evidence, and then
discussed his impressions with Applicant. Counsel ndted that he only provided Applicant
physicél copies of the discovery documents that directly concerned him. Regarding the armed
robbery, Applicant was caught fleeing the scene of the offense with his co-defendants. Applicant
told counsel that he never entered the residence, yet he did not disputé his involvement in fhe
offense. Regarding the murder, a firearm used in the armed robbery was identified as-the same
weapon used in a murder that occurred five days prior to the armed robbery. All of the co-
defendants in the vehicle with Applicant and the victim gave statements to police that identified
Applicant as the sole shooter. It was Applicant’s version of the facts that he was not preseht in
the vehicle at the time of the murder. Yet, Applicant never prbvided counsel an alibi during the
course of the répresentation. Counsel discussed the strength of the Staté’s evidence and
expressed his concerns that the jurvaould most likely convict him of murder if he proceeded to
trial. He stated that all the cb-ciefendants gave consistent accounts of the murder. In route,
Applicant toid the others in the VChiCiG he wanted to commit a murder just for the sake of
committing a murder. When Applicant noticed an unknown pedestrian walking along the rule
road, he seized upon the oﬁportuni& to kill him. Counsel stated he explained the sentencing

exposure Applicant was looking at if he did not consider entering favorable plea. Counsel stated
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that Applicant was exposed to a mandatory life without the possibility of parole (LWOP) prison
sentence or worse had the State pursued separate trials. The negotiated plea offer for an

aggregate twenty-five year prison sentence was as far as the State was willing to bend. Counsel
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stated that under the circumstances of the case he felt as if he did a good job to get the State to
agree to the twenty-five year prison sentence. Counsel discussed the constitutional implications
attached to entering a guilty plea and the benefits and detriments of the State’s offer with
Applicant. Counsel advised Applicant to accept the offer but apprised him that he had to make
the ultimate decision. Counsel stated Applicant’s co-defendant’s pled guilty after Applicant’s
plea.
APPLICABLE LAW

In a post-conviction relief action, the Appliéant bears the burden of proving the
_ allegations in their application. Butler v. State, 286 S.C. 441, 334 S.E.2d 813 (1985). Where the
application alleges ineffective assistance of counsel as a ground for relief, the Applicant must

prove that "counsel's conduct so undermined the proper functioning of the adversarial process

that the trial cannot be relied upon as having produced a just result." Strickland v. Washington,
466 U.S. 668, 104 S.Ct. 2052, 2064, (1984); Butler, 286 S.C. at 441, 334 S.E.2d at 813.

The proper measure of performance is whether the attorney provided representation
within the range of competence required in criminal cases. The courts presume that counsel
rendered adequate assistance and made all significant decisions in the exercise of reasonable
professional judgment. Strickland, 466 U.S. at 668, 104 S.Ct. at 2064. The Applicant must
overcome this presumption in order to receive relief. Cherry v. State, 300 S.C. 115, 386 S.E.2d

624 (1989).

The reviewing court applies a two-pronged test in evaluating allegations of ineffective
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assistance of plea counsel. First, the Applicant must prove that counsel's performance was
deficient. Under this prong, the court measures an attorney's performance by its "reasonableness

under professional norms." Cherry, 300 S.C. at 117, 386'S.E.2d at 625, citing Strickland, supra.

Seéond, counsel's .deﬁcient performémce must have prejudiced the Applicant such that "there is a
reasonable probability that, but for counsel's unprofessional errors, the result of the proceeding
would have been different." Cherry, 300 S.C. at 11.7-18, 386 S.E.2ci at 625.

FINDINGS OF FACT AND CONCLUSIONS OF LAW

Tl-li‘s Court has reviewed the tesﬁmony presented at the evidentiary hearing, observed the
witnesses presented at the hearing, passed upon their credibility, and weighed the testimony.
accordingly. Further, this Court reviewed the Clerk of. Court’s records regarding the subject
convictions, Applicant’s records from the South Carolina Department of Corrections, the
Application for Post-Conviction Relief, the transcripts and exhibits from the prior proceedings,
and legal arguments of counsel. Pursuant to S.C. Code Ann. §17-27-80 (2003), this Court makes
the»following findings of fact based upon all of the probative evidence presented.

As a matter of general impression, this Court finds counsel’s testimony credible and nétes
that he certainly had a valid defense strategy during the representation to keep Applicant from
spending the rest of his life in prison. This Court finds Applicant knowingly, intelligently, and
voluntarily entered his plea pursuant to counsel’s quality performance and as exhibited by the
plea colloquy. .

A.

This Court finds Applicant failed to meet his burden to prove counsel failed té properly

advise if him regarding the “hand of one” accomplice l'iability‘ theory of guilt. “A defendant who

enters a plea on the advice of counsel may only attack the voluntary and intelligent character of a
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plea by showing that counsel's representation fell below an objective standard of reasonableness

and that there is a reasonable probability that, but for counsel's errors, the defendant would not

have pled guilty, but would have insisted on going to trial.” Rolen v. State, 384 S.C. 409, 413,
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683 S.E.2d 471, 474 (2009).‘ “In determining guilty plea issues, it is proper to consider the guilty
plea transcript as well as evidence at the PCR hearing.” Suber v. State, 371 S.C. 554, 553, 640
S.E.2d 884, 886 (2007). This Court finds cqunsel’s testimony substantially more credible than
Applicant’s testimony -in light of the Record Vand- a complete lack of credible evidence to
* corroborate Applicant’s testimony. First, this Court finds the manner in which counsel reviewed
the discovery disclosures and communicated them to Applicant to be sound. This Court notes
Strickland does not mandate a per se duty on a criminal defense attorney to provide physical
copies of all discovery materials their clients. Furthermore, Applicant ensured the Plea Judge that
he was satisfied with the opportunity -he had to review discovery. Even Applicant’s allegation
was facially lacking. He noticeably was unable to explain what beneficial impact the bailistics
evidence would have rendered his defense had he decided to pursue a jury trial. Applicant was
also unable to explain how an alleged lack of fingerprint evidence would call into question eye
witness testimony and forensic evidence that established that the firearm discovered during the
armed robbery was in fact the murder weapon.

Second, this Court finds Applicant’s allegation that counsel failed to properly advise him
on the application of “hand of one” to his case to be wholly without merit. Under the “hand of
one is the hand of all” theory, one who joins with another to accomplish an illegal purpose is

liable criminally for everything done by his confederate incidental to the execution of the

common design and purpose. State v. Langley, 334 S.C. 643, 515 S.E.2d 98 (1999). Applicant

has produced no credible evidence that shows how the State would not be able to convincingly
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prove his culpability as an accomplice for the armed robbéry. The doctrine had no application on '
the murder charge where Applicant claimed he was not present at the scene in light of the State’s

clear evidence that he was the chief perpetrator. This Court finds Applicant’s testimony not

credible that counsel did not properly advise him of mitigating facts and potential defenses. That
Court finds that Counsel is an accomplished‘criminal defense attorney who devoted significant
time and resources in Applicant’s casé. Based upon counsel’s testimony, this Court is convinced
counsel met his threshold duty to discuss the appropriate law for potential defense theories.
Applicant did not provide much for counsel to work with. Applicant claimed he was not involved
in the murder because he was not at the scene but was unable to provide aﬁy alibi information. .
Notably, Applicant did not testify in particularity to the credibility of his co-defendants. As a
result, this Court finds Applicant 'rece_i‘ved effective assistance of counsel in counsel’s
performance in negotiating the lucrative plea offer. The Record clearly shows counsel met his
duty to competently advise Applicant of his fundamental rights and options \r;fhen Applicant
decided to enter the negotiated plea agreement. Therefore, thése allegations are denied and
dismissed.
B.

This Court finds Applicant’s allegation that counsel was ineffective for failing to ensure
Applicant received a similar prison sentence as his co-defendants is without merit. This Court
finds counsel’s testimony credible and Applicant’s testimony irrational. “Disparate sentences

between co-defendants is not per se abuse of discretion.” Griffin v. State, 361 S.C. 173, 177, 604

S.E.2d 394, 396 (2004) (citing State v. Dozier, 263 S.C. 267, 210 S.E.2d 225 (1974). “[W]ishful -
thinking regarding sentencing does not equal a misapprehension concerning the possible range of

sentences, especially where one acknowledges on the record that one knows the range of
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sentenc;es and that no promises have been made.” Wolfe v. State, 326 S.C. 158, 165, 485 S.E.2d
367, 371 (1997). The Record clearly shows that Applicant was substantially more culpable than

his co-defendants. Furthermore, Applicant has no constitutional right to a plea bargain. Applicant
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voluntarily entered a negotiated plea agreement with the State. See Rayford v. State, 314 S.C. 46,
48-49, 443 S.E.2d 805, 806 (1994) (where &mscript of guilty plea proceeding refuted applicant's
claim that he did not understand the terms of a plea bargain, grant of PCR was inappropriate
notwithstanding the applicant's claim lawyer misadvised him). Therefore, this allegation is
denied and dismissed.
E.

Except as discussed above, this Court finds that Applicant affirmatively abandons the

remaining ailegations set forth in his application at the hearing. A waiver is a voluntary and

intentional abandonment or relinquishment of a known right. Janasik v. Fairway Oaks Villas

Horizontal Property Regime, 307 S.C. 339, 415 S.E.2d 384 (1992). A waiver may be express or
implied. "An implied waiver results from acts and conduct of the party against whom the
doctrine is invoked from which an infentiona_l relinquishment of a right is reasonably inferable."

Lyles v. BMI, Inc., 292 S.C. 153, 158-59, 355 S.E.2d 282 (Ct. App. 1987). Applicant's failure to

address these issues at the hearing indicates a voluntary and intentional relmqulshment of his
right to do so. Therefore, any and all remaining allegations are denied and dismissed.
CONCLUSION
Based on all the forgoing, this Court finds and concludes that Applicant has not
established any constitutional violations or deprivations that would require this Court to grant his
Application for Post-Conviction Relief. Therefore, this Application for Pdst-Convictioﬁ Relief

must be denied and dismissed with prejudice.
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This Court notes that Applicant must file and serve a notice of intent to appeal within

thirty (30) days from receipt of this Order to secure the appropriate appéllate review. See Rule

203, SCACR. Rule 71.1(g), SCRCP; Bray v. State, 336 S.C. 137, 620 S.E.2d 743 (2005), for the

obligation of Applicant’s counsel to file and serve notice of appeal. Applicant’s attention is also

directed to South Carolina Appellate Court Rule 243 for appropriate procedures after notice has

been timely filed.

IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED:

1. That the Application for Post-Conviction Relief must be denied and dismissed
with prejudice; and
2. Applicant must be remanded to the custody of Respondent
AND IT IS SO ORDERED this __» (__ dayof .WMNQ/\ ,2014.
. C ’ -
/| R.LAWTON MCINTOSH
iding Judge
\ ‘ Eleventh Judicial Circuit .
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DMS

DOCKET NO. 2010653202979

The State of South Carolina

County of Lexington

e— — —

— ——— =

ARREST WARRANT NUMBER

J849808

ACTION OF GRAND JURY

O e

Foreperson of Grand Jury
Date: /o /o/fyo

COURT OF GENERAL SESSIONS

OCTOBER TERM 2010

e

THE STATE
vs.

Phillip Harold Jackson

CDR #: 0116

r 7
VERDICT

Foreperson of Petit Jury
Date:

Indictment for

Murder

§ 16-03-0010; 16-03-0020

DONALD V. MYERS, mO_.._O_.-.Jolw
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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) INDICTMENT FOR
A ) ' Murder a
COUNTY OF LEXINGTON ) :
) § 16-03-0010; 16-03-0020

At a Court of General Sessions, convened on October 2010, the Grand Jurors of
Lexington County present upon their oath: '

That Philip Harold Jackson, along with Neo Desmond Colin Haywood, Justin
Lavar Jones, and D'Marqus Laquen Thomas, on or about Novemeber 1, 2009, in
Lexington County, South Carolina did commit the offense of Murder in that he did,
feloniously, willfully and with malice aforethought, kill the victim James Wilbur Lybrand
I, to wit: Defendant shot the victim in the face with a .38 caliber handgun, in violation of
Section 18-3-10 of the South Carolina Code Of Laws, (1976, as amended).

A TRUE COPY "

Against the peace and dignity of the State, and contrary to the statute in such case made and

provided. ' @,J H §\ , |

ASSISTANT SOLICITOR
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WITNESSES

Lexington County Sheriffs Department
Michael S. Ellis

Law Enforcement Case #: 09102260

CED

e ———

ARREST WARRANT NUMBER

J849699

VERDICT

Foreperson of Petit Jury
Date:

DOCKET NO. 2011GS3201269

The State of South Carolina

| County of Lexington

COURT OF GENERAL SESSIONS

‘MAY TERM 2011

THE STATE
vs.

Phillip Harold Jackson

_CDRi#: 0139

Indictment for

ARMED ROBBERY WHILE ARMED OR
ALLEGEDLY ARMED WITH A DEADLY
WEAPON

§ 16-11-0330(A)

EDONALD V. MYERS,; SOLICITOR
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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA

) INDICTMENT FOR

) ARMED ROBBERY WHILE ARMED OR
COUNTY OF LEXINGTON ) ALLEGEDLY ARMED WITH A DEADLY

) WEAPON

§ 16-11-0330(A)

At a Court of General Sessions, convened on MAY 2011, the Grand Jurors of
Lexington County present upon their oath:

That Phillip Harold Jackson did in Lexington County, South Carolina on or
about November 4, 2009 knowingly and willfully while armed with a deadly weapon, to
wit: a shotgun did feloniously take from the person or presence of Winslow Hendrix, by
means of force, threats or intimidation goods or monies with intent to deprive the owner
of the use of such property, in violation of Section 16-11-330 (A) of the South Carolina

Code of Laws, 1976, as amended

C

ATRUE C COPY
)

Tex. Co‘r!ccz XN TN

Against the peace and dignity of the State, and contrary to the statute in such case made and

provided. i ! % (j .

ASSISTANT SOLICITOR

Sy



STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA

) IN THE COURT OF GENERAL SESSIONS
COUNTY OF Lexington ;
STATE VS. ) INDICTMENT/CASE#: __ 2010GS3202979

thip Harold Jackson ) A/WE: 1849808
AKA: y  Dateof Offense: _11/1/2009
Apge: ) S.C.Code § :_16-03-0010
) CDRCode#: _ 0Ll6
)
i ; SENTENCE SHEET
" scDL YesD No[] CMY Yes[] No[J Hazmat Yes[] No[]
In disposition of the said indictment comes now the Defendant who was {J CONVICTEDOF or (XIPLEADS
, TO: Manslaughter / Voluntary manslaughter
in violation of § 16-03-0050 of the S.C. Code of Laws, bearing CDR Code # 0217
[J NON-VIOLENT X1 VIOLENT [JSERIOUS ~ [RIMOST SERIOUS  [JMandatory GPS(CSC [1§17-2545
. w/minor 1st or Lewd Act)
Thecharge is: (] As Indicted, [X]Lesser Included Offense,  [)Dcfendant Waives Presentment to Grand Jury. (defendant's initials)
i Without Negotiations or Recommendation, (R Negotiated Sentence,\\!s (O Recommendation by the State.
BE ég ! ' g/ﬁé
SC Bai efendant ttorney t _

WHEREFORE, the Defendant is commited to the State Department of Corrections, [J County Detention Center,
fora de\tennina!e'term of 2. 5— days/monthyyears [ under the Youthful Offender Act not to exceed years
end/or to pay a fine of $ ~__; provid pon the service of days/months/years and/or payment
of § ; plus costs and assessments as applicable®; the balance is suspended with probation  for

months/years and subject to South Carolina Department of Probation, Parole and Pardon Services standard conditions of
probation, which are incorporated by reference.

(] CONCURRENT or . .[J CONSECUTIVE to sentence on:
[33” The Defendant is to be given credit for Eau:?erved pursuant to S.C. Code § 24-13-40 to be calgulztsd
by the State Departrnent of Corrections.

(0 The Defendant is to be placed on the Central Reglstry of itd Abuse and Neglect pursuant to S.C, Code §

Pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 922,it is unlawful for a person convicted of a violation of Section 16-25

Domestic Violence ) to ship,transport,possess,or receive a firearm or. ammunition, Lex. Co. q 5 REC
SPECIAL CONDITIONS:
{JRESTITUTION: [ Deferred {T] Def. Waives Hearing [ ] Ordered  PTUP .
. Total: .$ plus 20% fee: $ days/hours Public Service Employment
Payment Terms: ObtainGED [J
. O Setby SCDPPPS Artend Voc, Rehab. or Job Corp.
— May serve W/E begining
Recipient: Substance Abuse Counseling O
*Fine: $ Random Drug/Alcohol testing
§ 14-1-206 (Assessmeats 107.5 %) $ Fine may be pd. in equal, consecutive weekly/monthly
S 1A Ut sy, 5100 5 prts of S ———— beshnng
- ur < 1 . .
g 56-5.2995 (DU Assmmc:(;g 12 z s _______ paidto Public Defender Fund
§ 56-1-286 (DUI Breath Test) $25 3 Other:
Proviso 47.9 (Public Def/Prob) $500 [3
§ 14-1-212 (Law Enforce. Funding) s25 808
§ 14-1-213 (Drug Court Surcharge) £150 3
§ 50-21-114(BUI Breath Test Fee) $s0 s :
§ 56-5-2942(J) (Vchicle Assessment) $40/ca § O A§p p:;mle:r:un:;:l;%om
Proviso 90.5 (SCC)A Surcharge) $5 sZ — during probation.
3% to County (if paid in installments) $
TOTAL ; Presiding Judge
Clerk of Courv/ D Judge Code;
Court Reporter: Sentence Date: 2 -2 5 )7 v

SCCAN217(03/2011)
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ST A'i'B OF SOUTH CAROLINA IN THE COURT OF GENERAL SESSIONS

COUNTY OF Lexington
STATE VS.
Phillip Harold Jackson

INDICTMENT/CASE#: 2011GS3201269

A/WE:  JB49699
Date of Offense: _11/4/2009
S.C.Code § :_16-11-0330(A)

CDR Code #: _ 0139

AKA:
Race:
DOB:
Address:
City,State,Zip:
 DL#: g

"CDL Yes(J No[] CMV Yes[J No[] Hazmat Yes[] No[] » ‘
In disposition of the said indictment comes now the Defendant who was [J CONVICTEDOF or (XIPLEADS
, TO: Robbery / Armed Robbery, robbery while armed or allegedly armed with a deadly weapon

in violation of  § -16-11-0330(A) of the S.C. Code of Laws, bearing CDR Code # 0139
a NON-VIOLENT ~ X VIOLENT [DSERIOUS  (XJMOST SERIOUS [ JMandatory GPS(CSC [§17-2545
w/minor st or Lewd Act)
The charge is: As Indicted, ([TJLesser Included Offense, DDefendant Waives Presentment to Grand Jury. (defendant’s initials)

Thepleais: ,, [JWithout Negotiations or Recomunendation, (X] Negotiated Sentence, 25 AR} Recommendation by the State.
A 1y

¢ . , 7 -

__[ZLQ%___W 2Bl g o0
olicifor SCB efendant fendant ’

WHEREFORE, the Defendant is commited to the State Department of Corrections, [ County Detention Center,

for a determinate term of 24 days/monthf/yea " [0 under the Youthful Offender Act not to exceed _____Yyesrs
and/or to pay & fine of ; provi at upon the service of days/months/years and/or payme payment

of § ; plus costs and assessments as applicable®; the balance is suspended with . probation for.

Sex: M Age: 24

SENTENCE SHEET

— el " Nt Nt Nt N o N s

months/years and subject to South Carolina Department of Probatlon Parole and Pardon Services standard conditions of
probation, which are incorporated by reference.

(@~ CONCURRENT or [ CONSECUTIVE to sentence on: A O/D- . P2 &

{o3~The Defendant is to be given credit for time served pursuant to S.C. Code § 24-13-40 to be calcujated and applied

by the State Department of Corrections. L o 0O VA

[0 The Defendant is to be placed on the Central eglstry of Child Abuse and Neglect pursuant to S, C Code -25-13 .
Pursuant to 38 U.S.C Section 922,it is unlawful for a person convicted of a violation of Sec ug@%y

Domestic Violence ) to shlp,transport,possess,or receive a firearm or ammunition.

SPECIAL CONDITIONS: m

DRESTITUT]ON: 7] Deferred [] Def. Waives Hearing {Jorderes PTUP ‘an’ & .E G.

Total: § _. plus 20% fee: $ daysthours Public Service Employment

Payment Terms: Obtain GED

(J Setby SCDPPPS Attend Voc. Rehab. or Job Corp.

— : May serve W/E begining

Recipient: Substance Abuse Counseling O

*Fine: $ Random Drug/Alcohol testing =~ [

§ 14-1-206 (Assessments 107.5 %) [} Fine may be pd. in equal, consecutive weekly/monthly
. §14-1-211(A)(I) (Conv. Surcharge) $100 3 l D¢z pmts.of§ ______ _ beginning

§ 14-1-211(A)(2) (DUI Surcharge) $100 3 ] ] . .

§ 56.5.2995 (DUI Assessment) 12 § s peid to Public Defender Fund

§ 56-1-286 (DUI Breath Test) 25 7§ Other:

Proviso 47.9 (Public Def/Prob) $500 s ,

§ 14-1-212 (Law Enforce. Funding) 525 5~

§ 14-1-213 (Drug Court Surcharge) $150 §

§50-21-114(BUI Breath TestFee) S0 ~§ . .

§ 56-5-2942(J) (Vehicle Assessment) $40/ea "8 D Ag p:;mg PD or a‘;};mm d other counsel,

Proviso 90.5 (SCCJA Surcharge) ss during Ay

3%to County (if paid in instaliments) s P

TOTAL ] Presiding Judge
" Clerk of Court/ Depy Judge Code: x4

Court Reporter: 5 Sentence Date: 2. 9K ~ S 2

SCCAf217 (032011) { ‘ =




